1992

# Lehi City v. Wesley R. Carlson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction of this matter is appropriate in this Court pursuant to Rules 3 and 4 of the Utah Court of Appeals, Rule 26 of the Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure and the Utah Constitution.

## ISSUES PRESENTED

I. When a trial is held for a defendant that person has a right to attend his trial so that he/she may defend for themselves. Rules 17 (a) states that in all cases the defendant shall have the right to appear and defend in person and by counsel. The defendant shall be personally present at the trial with the following exceptions:

(1) IN prosecutions of misdemeanors and infractions, defendant may consent in writing to trial in his absence.

(2) In prosecutions for offenses not punishable by death, the defendant's voluntary absence from the trial after notice to the defendant of the ----- time for trial shall not prevent the case from being tried and a verdict or judgement entered therein shall have the same effect as if defendant had been present; and etc.

Carlson was not VOLUNTARILY absent from trial in the Lehi Justice Court. and no written permission was given to have the trial in Carlson's absence.

2. When a trial is held for a defendant that person has a right to be represented by Counsel. 88 SUPREME COURT REPORTER 389 U.S. 109 BURGETT vs. STATE of TEXAS The convictions did not show that defendant was represented by counsel or that he waived counsel, the records raised a presumption that defendant was denied his right to counsel in violation of SIXTH AMENDMENT,

and have been deemed VOID in the

subsequent prosecution in Texas. Also 389 U.S.112 the tenth line down shows "that the judgement on its face showed that petitioner was not represented by counsel in violation of the FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT.

After paying Attorney Mark Stringer \$500.00 to represent Carlson by counsel ,Mr.Stringer ask Carlson for an additional \$2100.00 more, which I could not afford, and Mr. Stringer declined in writing to represent Carlson futher. In which case I was not able to proceed on my own, because of the lack of understanding of Court Procedure , and did not understand what I was being tried for. And the American Fork Fourth Circuit Court never even ask Carlson if he wanted to be represented by Counsel or ask if I understood what Carlson was being tried for orunderstood how to proceed .

## DETERMINATIVE AUTHORITIES

### UTAH CONSTITUTION

"The political power is founded in the people, all free governments are founded on their authority for their equal protection and benefit....."

#### Article I, Section 2

"No person shall be deprived of life, liberty or property, without due process of law."

#### Article I, Section 7

"All courts shall be open, and every person, for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation, shall have remedy by due course of law, which shall be administered without denial or unnecessary delay;....."

#### Article I, Section II

"In all criminal prosecutions the accused have the right to be confronted by the witnesses against him,....to have a speedy public trial by an impartial jury...."

#### Article I Section I2

### CONSTITUTION of the UNITED STATES

"....In all cases ... in which the state shall be a party, the Supreme Court shall have original jurisdiction...

The trial of all crimes, except in cases of impeachment, shall be by jury....."

#### Article III, Section 2

".... This Constitution and the laws of the United States which shall be made in pursuance thereof;... shall be the supreme law of the land; and the judges in every State shall be bound thereby, anything in the Constitution or laws of any state to the contrary notwithstanding....."



## STATEMENT OF CASE

-----

This is an appeal as of right from a criminal matter which was originally tried in the Lehi Justice Court in my absence not by my choice, wherewith I tried to have the case postponed to a later date, without success. Then bound over to the American Fork Fourth Circuit Court - State of Utah, Utah County. On October 20, 1992, Wherein Appellant was convicted of Charges - 76-5-I02 Simple Aslt., and was appealed to the Utah Court of Appeals on December 8, 1992. The following facts are relevant to the case:

## FACTS

-----

- I. On April 4, 1992 Appellant, (hereinafter "Carlson") was involved in an Assault upon myself by Steffane Nelsen then by Steven Nelsen then last Brad who was not cited for the assault upon me for some unknown reason upon the head of the citing officer Paul Kirkpatrick.
2. Carlson originally filed the complaint as the Plaintiff  
-----  
not the Defendant as Carlson has suffered much property damage which restitution has never been compensated for as of this time. and verbal abuse constantly for many years.
3. Carlson originally was tried and found guilty in my absence in Lehi Justice Court. where with my Employer was unwilling to

release me at the appointed Court time, wherewith I had no choice in the matter of absence, in the Lehi Justice Court.

ARGUMENT  
-----

4. The Lehi Police Department Statement from Sarah Densmore testifying as to what she saw does not reflect the facts as they were as she was a friend of Steffane and Steven and would not testify of anything that would jeopardize them. Her testimony should be considered partial and incompetent, as she did not mentioned that Steffane first jumped Carlson from behind and held me while Steven kicked Carlson in the stomach then hit Carlson in the head after which Brad also hit Carlson in the head, which after releasing myself from Steffane's hold on me, I did fall to the ground.

### SUMMARY OF ARGUEMENT

The information filed against Carlson and not having any witness of my own make it difficult to defend myself if not impossible. because of the lack of sufficient evidence not being of sufficient credibility beyond a reasonable doubt that Carlson did not assault anyone; but was only trying to protect his rights from verbal abuse by Steven Nelsen and to protect his property from further damage and loss that has not been made restitution for as of this time. nor has the American Fork Hospital and the department of Radiology been paid for damages resulting from the injuries to me by Steven Nelsen and Brad.

The due process of law and my Constitutional rights have thus far been denied to me. I have not assaulted anyone.

Dated this: 19 day of January 1993

Respectfully Submitted

Wesley Raymond Carlson

WESLEY RAYMOND CARLSON