1992

## Lehi v. Carlson : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION AND NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from a conviction of Assault, a Class "B" Misdemeanor, pursuant to Utah Code Annotated Section 76-5-102. The Defendant was tried and convicted in his absence in the Lehi City Justice Court on June 23, 1992. The conviction was appealed and a subsequent trial de novo was held in the Fourth Circuit Court, American Fork Department. Trial was then held in the Circuit Court on October 20, 1992 and the Defendant was again convicted of Assault. The Defendant was sentenced immediately after the trial. The notice of appeal was filed November 4, 1992. This court has jurisdiction to hear the appeal under Utah Code Annotated Section 78-2a-3(f).

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Whether a criminal Defendant's voluntary absence at trial, when a subsequent appeal and trial de novo to a circuit court are held and the Defendant was present for the second

trial, violates Defendant's right to appear personally at his trial.

2. Whether a criminal Defendant has a right to appointed counsel when no term of imprisonment is imposed as a result of the conviction.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Defendant, Wesley Raymond Carlson, was charged with Simple Assault, a Class "B" Misdemeanor, in violation of Utah Code Annotated Section 76-5-102. Defendant was tried and convicted in absentia in the Lehi Justice Court on June 23, 1992. (R. 6). The Defendant filed an appeal to the American Fork Circuit Court and the case was set for a Non-Jury trial for August 11, 1992. (R. 9). The trial date was cancelled and a pre-trial was set for September 1, 1992 when attorney Mark Stringer entered an appearance and plea on behalf of the Defendant. (R. 11 and 12). At the pre-trial conference, the case was then set for trial for October 20, 1992 at 1:00 p.m. (R. 14). On September 15, 1992 attorney Mark Stringer withdrew as counsel for the Defendant. (R. 15). On October 20, 1992, trial was held and the Defendant represented himself at the trial. (R. 16). The Defendant was tried, convicted and sentenced on October 20, 1992. (R. 33-35). The notice of appeal was filed on November 4, 1992.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Defendant was charged with Assault, a Class "B" Misdemeanor, after the Defendant confronted his neighbor regarding his neighbor's abusive language. The assault occurred after the Defendant crossed over into his neighbor's front yard. The Defendant admitted at trial that the testimony of Vickie Nelson detailing the Assault was accurate. (R. 29-57).

At the trial in the Lehi Justice Court, Defendant failed to appear because he was working. (Appellants brief, pages 4-5). After the conviction in the Justice Court, the Defendant appealed the matter to the Fourth Circuit Court, American Fork Department. The Defendant obtained an attorney, Mark Stringer, to represent him. (R. 11). He initially paid Mr. Stringer \$500.00 and then, when Mr. Stringer requested additional funds to continue representation, the Defendant indicated that he was unable to afford the additional funds. (Appellant's brief at page 2). Attorney Mark Stringer subsequently filed a Notice of Withdrawal (R. 15).

The trial in the Circuit Court was held on October 20, 1992. Defendant was present and represented himself. (R. 57-29). The Defendant was fined \$200.00 together with a \$70.00 surcharge. There was no jail time imposed as a result of the conviction. (R. 19).



### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Defendant, by his voluntary absence from his trial in the Lehi Justice Court, waived his right to be present at his trial. However, his absence at the Lehi Justice Court trial is moot in light of the fact that the Defendant was present at the trial de novo held in the American Fork Circuit Court. Additionally, Defendant's constitutional right to an appointed counsel was not violated in that there is no such right where no term of imprisonment is imposed as a result of the conviction.

### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I

DEFENDANT WAS VOLUNTARILY ABSENT FROM THE LEHI JUSTICE COURT TRIAL.

Defendant admits in his brief, pages 4-5, that he was unable to attend the trial because he was at work. This Court has held that a Defendant must have a compelling reason to stay away from trial. State v. Wagstaff, 772 P.2d 987 (Utah App. 1989). If a Defendant's absence is deliberate without sound reason, the trial may start in his absence. Id. at 990.

The Defendant has not shown that there was a compelling reason for him to stay away from the trial. Under these facts, the trial court was justified in proceeding without the Defendant.

## POINT II

DEFENDANT'S ABSENCE AT LEHI JUSTICE COURT TRIAL  
IS HARMLESS ERROR IN THAT DEFENDANT WAS PRESENT  
AT THE SUBSEQUENT TRIAL DE NOVO.

It is undisputed that the Defendant was present at his subsequent trial in the Fourth Circuit Court, American Fork Department. The trial was a trial de novo and the Defendant was afforded a chance to cross examine all witnesses that appeared against him as well as to provide any witnesses in his defense. In light of the fact that the Defendant was able to fully defend himself in this subsequent trial, his absence at the original trial is harmless error and does not constitute sufficient basis for overturning his conviction. (See Rule 61, Utah Rules of Civil Procedure).

## POINT III

DEFENDANT DID NOT HAVE A CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO  
APPOINTED COUNSEL

The Defendant claims that his sixth amendment rights were violated in that he was unable to afford an attorney and that one should have been appointed for him. (See Appellants brief pages 1 and 2). The United States Supreme Court, in Scott v. Illinois, 440 U.S. 367, 99 S.Ct 1158, 59 L.Ed.2d 383 (1979), held that the sixth and fourteenth amendments to the United States Constitution require only that no indigent criminal Defendant be sentenced to a term of imprisonment unless the state has afforded him the